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In compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act of the State of New Jersey adequate notice of this meeting has been mailed to The Daily Record and posted at the municipal building.

ROLL CALL:

Members Present:   John Cavanaugh, Joe Fleischner, Rene Gadelha (7:38 p.m.), John Mania, Nelson Russell, Jim Staszak, Scott Van Ness, Steve Bedell, Howie Weiss

Members Excused:  Mayor David Scapicchio 

Members Absent:  Dan Nelsen

Professionals Attending:  Chuck McGroarty, Planning Consultant, Eugene Buczynski, P.E., Edward Buzak, Esq., Catherine Natafalusy, Planning Administrator

Professionals Excused:  Tiena Cofoni, Esq.



APPLICATION #PB 10-32 – RALPH MARINA / JOSEPH MARINA
MR. WEISS:

Before we start tonight I have one notice, if anyone is here for PB 10-32 Ralph and Joseph Marina that will not be heard tonight and that will be rescheduled to June 16 with no further notice.  So if anybody is here to hear that application it will not be heard this evening. 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES

March 10, 2011 Public Meeting


Motion:

Steve Bedell


Second:

Joe Fleischner

Roll Call:


John Cavanaugh
- yes


Joe Fleischner

- yes


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Steve Bedell

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes

March 17, 2011 Public Meeting


Motion:

Scott Van Ness


Second:

Jim Staszak

Roll Call:


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Scott Van Ness

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes



RESOLUTION FOR APPROVAL

Resolution #PB 10-19 – JOAN BORG (Block 6502, Lot 8)

Motion:

Jim Staszak


Second:

Nelson Russell

Roll Call:


Nelson Russell

- yes


Jim Staszak

- yes


Howie Weiss

- yes



COMMITTEE REPORTS

MR. WEISS:

Committee reports the Mayor is not here at this point and if he shows up we’ll give him an opportunity to see if he has a report for us.  Council, Mr. Mania?

MR. MANIA:

Not at this time Mr. President.

MR. WEISS:

Environmental Commission, Nelson?

MR. RUSSELL:

Yeah we met last night we discussed the Southbranch River Association water testing on Saturday the 30th and Sunday the 1st of May and it was reported that there’s more silt in the lake from Morris Chase now that they’re pursuing development.  

MR. WEISS:

Okay is there any action required from the Planning Board at this point?  Do you need the Planning Board to . . . nothing yet?  Okay.  Ordinance Committee?
MR. STASZAK:

Nothing to report at this time.

MR. WEISS:

There is nothing from the Street Naming Committee.  Rene was there an Open Space Committee?

MS. GADELHA:

There was but there’s nothing to report other than the fact that we are trying to orchestrate a field trip around Mt. Olive again so I’ll announce that date soon.  And we’re also putting together another date to work on trails and clean up debris from the winter and keep those in good shape.  Other than that that’s it.

MR. WEISS:

Okay any other reports Mr. Buzak?

MR. BUZAK:

I have nothing Mr. Chairman thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. Buczynski?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No sir.

MR. WEISS:

Mr. McGroarty?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Nothing.



APPLICATION #PB 11-04 – 350 CLARK DRIVE LLC 

MR. WEISS:

All right let’s move right into our developmental matters.  The first one on the agenda this evening is PB 11-04 350 Clark Drive LLC a preliminary and final site plan with variances.  The property is located at 350 Clark Drive Block 102, Lot 11.01.  Tonight in front of us we have Mr. Selvaggi representing the applicant.  

MR. SELVAGGI:

Thank you very much Mr. Chairman I do appreciate the opportunity.  We are here this evening for 350 Clark Drive LLC it is the old Calvin Klein building as some of you may have recalled that in the International Trade Zone.  This is a redevelopment and I guess is probably the best way to characterize it, Calvin Klein had been the single user tenant of the building, that is no longer the case and the applicant/owner is seeking to subdivide the interior space, reallocate it so that it is now a multi-tenant building.  As a result of doing that there are some site improvements that need to be done to the building.  Most specifically additional loading docks, some additional parking that needs to be added, other than that the property is to remain the same, but it’s a technicality and we do need to get that relief so what I’d like to do is not belabor the point.  We do have the applicant’s engineer who is to my left who should be sworn and bordaired and we can jump right into the testimony Mr. Buzak.
MR. WEISS:

Thank you do you think you’re going to have other witnesses?

MR. SELVAGGI:

We don’t intend to call any specific other witnesses, we have people available if necessary to answer a question but we do believe it’s a rather simple kind of straight forward application.

MR. WEISS:

Okay Greg at this point obviously you know Mr. Buzak is not trying to give you a hug.
(GREGORY PLOUSSAS SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Could you please state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Gregory Ploussas (P-L-O-U-S-S-A-S) I’m with the Chester Plousas Lisowsky Partnership address is 100 Matawan Road, Suite 100, Matawan, New Jersey. 

MR. SELVAGGI:

Mr. Ploussas I know you’ve appeared before this Board and many others but just for the record what’s your educational background, professional licenses as well as your experience in Land Use matters?
MR. WEISS:

I don’t mean to interrupt I think everyone on this Planning Board has known Greg and I think Greg has spoken for himself I don’t think we need . . . .

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Thank you.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Greg I’ve given kind of a layman, lawyer overview of what’s proposed here but I do think it’s important just to quickly at least orient the Board and members of the public who may be here as to the property location and then we can just kind of move right in to what we’re proposing.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We have prepared an aerial photograph of the basically the whole International Trade Center and it’s been marked as exhibit A-1.  And you’ll see on 350 Clark Drive is located on the south end of Clark Drive.  Over here to the right is the intersection of Route 46 and International Drive, you go up International Drive and make a left onto Clark Drive and another left onto Clark Drive down to the south to get to 350 Clark Drive it’s also the former Calvin Klein building.  John Mania probably remembers it we were here three times originally getting the approvals, the original approval was granted in 1986 for the Rockefeller Group for the first building, we came back in 1990 and then 1992 with two additions to the building.  It’s also known as Lot 11.02, Block 102 and it consists of 40.41 acres in the FTZ-2 zone.  That’s generally the site.

MR. SELVAGGI:

And Mr. Buzak just for the record we did pre-mark that A-1 the exhibit that you’re looking at.

MR. BUZAK:

Did we put the date of 4/21/11 on it?

MR. SELVAGGI:

Yes we did.

MR. BUZAK:

Very good thank you.

MR. SELVAGGI:

And now we’re flipping over to what we pre-marked A-2.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Now we’ll move over to the site itself which is a colored rendering of the site plan and we marked it A-2 with today’s date on it.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Greg if you can what sheet in the plans, just so the Board has that is it sheet 3 of 5?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes.

MR. SELVAGGI:

So A-2 is a colored version of sheet 3 of 5 which were submitted with our plans.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

I’ve also passed out small handouts to the Board because I know its tough reading that far from the dais.  In any event what we are proposing to do is three or four improvements to the existing building.  The building consists of a total of 442,212 square feet and it’s also three buildings.   We label it Building A to the west, Building B to the north, and Building C to the south.  In the 442,212 square feet we have 138,512 square feet of office, and 303,700 square feet of warehouse again for a total of 442,212 square feet.  In accordance with your ordinance the parking requirements for this building come to 546 spaces, 485 for the office and 61 for the warehouse.  Existing on-site today there are 485 spaces, as part of the improvements that we’ll be doing we will be eliminating 35 spaces but adding 56 spaces for a net gain of 21 spaces.  So when all of the improvements are complete we’ll have a total of 506 spaces available where 546 are required.  So we are short 40 spaces and we’ll be asking the Board for a waiver to that.  I’ll get into the basis for the waiver later let me explain to the Board first the improvements that we’re doing.  Over in the southeastern end of the building we call it Area A we’re installing 3 loading docks in this location, 10 trailer storage spaces in this location, 3 parking spaces to the right, and 3 parking spaces to the left the parking spaces are 9 foot by 20 foot according to the ordinance.  All of this work is being done within the existing disturbed area either on existing pavement or the existing grassed area currently between the building and the parking lot.  Next we have Area B which is to the north of the building and we’re constructing 2 loading docks and 6 additional parking spaces 9 foot by 20 foot.  Next we go to Area C roughly in the middle of the north end of the building and we’re installing 8 new parking spaces 9 foot by 20 foot by basically striping the existing pavement.  And then lastly we have Area D which is up to the east where we’re installing a total of 24 - 9 foot by 20 foot spaces, 6 - 10 foot by 18 foot spaces and 6 compact spaces that are 10 by 16 that gives us a total of 36 spaces in Area D.  Then to recap we’re providing 56 new parking spaces, 5 new loading docks, and 10 trailer storage spaces.  And that’s basically what we’re doing we’re not increasing the amount of disturbed area on the site which you can see on the rendering is the heavy green area that was disturbed originally, we’re doing all of our work either on paved areas or on grassed areas that have been previously disturbed.  As I indicated before we’re asking for a parking waiver on the amount of parking spaces.  The ordinance for Mt. Olive defines the square footage for the office and warehouse as gross square footage to include the certain common areas like corridors and hallways but it excludes stairwells, utility rooms and things like that.  Since this is a multi-tenant building now there are going to be corridors in it, common corridors to get to the different buildings and the different uses.  We believe those should be subtracted from the gross square footage because they’re not providing any usable space for the tenants and they will not produce any employees or visitors.  If we back that calculation out we then will be reducing the building to a total of 425,601 square feet the office will be reduced to 124,564 square feet and the warehouse will be reduced to 301,037 square feet.  Running through the parking calculations for the various square footages reduces the amount of parking requirements to 496 so that if the Board would allow us to deduct the common corridors which do not produce any employees or visitors we then exceed the requirement by 10 spaces.  

MR. SELVAGGI:

But we are still asking just for purposes of clarity a design waiver off of the 546.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes because the definition of gross square footage in the ordinance does not permit us to exclude the common corridors.  We’re asking the Board to allow us to do that and then we will comply.
MR. WEISS:

Greg let me ask you a question for the record, the building is vacant now?

MR. SELVAGGI:

No there’s tenants, there is some space being used but there are two tenants that are going to be in hopefully as soon as possible depending on how well we do this evening.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We are asking for two other waivers a waiver to the Environmental Impact Statement and the basis for the waiver is the site has been disturbed already it’s not a pristine or wooded site and all of the issues that would be addressed in an Environmental Impact Statement had been addressed previously.  The wetlands, the slopes, the soils, etc. the Board would gain nothing by getting an Environmental Impact Statement so we’re asking for a waiver for that.

MR. WEISS:

I can agree with that anybody else have a problem?

MR. MANIA:

Legally I think the waiver for the parking spaces we need a determination whether we can legally subject common areas and then you don’t even need the waiver.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Well that’s up to . . . I mean see we didn’t even . . .

MR. MANIA:

Well I need a legal opinion.

MR. BUZAK:

I think that, if I understand the way the applicant is preceding they are justifying the waiver based upon a calculation to persuade the Board that the parking number is really excessive if you take into account these common corridors that would not otherwise produce individuals or would not produce occupancy.  So I think it’s still a waiver I don’t think the Board can modify the ordinance in that way the ordinance says what it says and I think that their analysis is a sound one given the purposes of the ordinance and the standards that they have to meet under the waiver.  So I think the Board should continue to consider that as a waiver as opposed to anything else.
MR. MANIA:

Thank you Mr. Buzak.

MR. BUZAK:

You’re welcome.

MR. WEISS:

Greg maybe you can answer the question.  When Calvin Klein was in the building as a sole occupant right they were at one point?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes.

MR. WEISS:

Can you comment on the parking at the time was there sufficient parking, was there excessive parking?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

There was excessive I’ve been in that building many times when Calvin Klein was in it and the parking lot was never full.  The ordinance is pretty conservative.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Well I guess the only thing that comes to my mind is the use right?  So if this was, the initial use was a manufacturing site and I think you’re right Greg then probably the number of spaces given a manufacturing operation were probably sufficient or in excess right?  But now we haven’t really heard yet what the proposed use of these tenants are going to be, it may or may not be the same density of parking required I don’t know.  

MR. PLOUSSAS:

When Calvin Klein was in there they had distribution in there as well as warehousing, as well as office and they had some manufacturing.  So that required a different parking mix.

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Right.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Here my current understanding is and the attorney or the client can correct me if I’m wrong we’re basically all office and warehouse at the current time there’s no manufacturing contemplated which would change the parking requirements.  
MR. WEISS:

Does that satisfy you John?

MR. CAVANAUGH:
Yeah I think then that’s the rational for the waiver right?  Because typically in a warehouse you know you’re not going to have . . . you have four trucks basically or some laborer who don’t have the same density of worker as manufacturing does. 

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yeah and the warehousing now I’m sure as the Board knows are all automated and even one per thousand is too much but that’s what the ordinance requires.  And lastly we’re asking for a waiver to the stormwater management plan and calculations.  And again because the stormwater management system was installed when Calvin Klein was in there in 1986, it was designed and installed in accordance with Mt. Olive’s ordinance at the time which releases the predevelopment rate to a ten year which no other town in New Jersey had that at the time and is quite conservative.  And the amount of new impervious coverage is only .22 acres which will increase the total impervious coverage of the site from 40.2 to 40.7 acres the numbers are diminumous and there will no impact at all on the stormwater system and we’re asking for that waiver.  I also left out one other improvement that would go into the site, over in the southerly westerly corner between the loading dock area and the front parking lot a fire lane was approved and installed it’s a paved fire lane.  The pavement has deteriorated but we’d also like to now use it as an access way for the trucks.  Instead of the trucks having to back out here and then go around this way we’d like it to . . . we’re going to repave it and curb it to meet the current ordinance requirements and use it as a traffic aisle.  I forgot to mention that.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Now that’s not shown on the plans we have to date correct?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes it is.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It is?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We resubmitted plans . . . . it wasn’t in your report because it came after those plans were filed with the Board.  I have a copy of the letter from . . .
MR. WEISS:

Greg hold on one second Rene has a question.

MS. GADELHA:

Just on the impervious coverage, so the repaving and curbing is that factored into the 40.7 acres?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes.

MS. GADELHA:

And what is the total amount of impervious coverage allowable on a site this size?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

70 percent.

MS. GADELHA:

Thank you.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

But we’re well below that.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah and that access road was paved before so there’s no increase in coverage.

MS. GADELHA:

Right thank you.

MR. BUZAK:

What was the percentage you said 40.2 acres right?  Is that what you said?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes.   

MR. SELVAGGI:

No, no, no, no.  It was 40.2 percent.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

40.2 percent.

MR. BUZAK:

Percent okay I thought you said acres that’s what confused me.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Maybe I did I’m sorry if I did.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you.

MR. VAN NESS:

Are you going to widen that currently?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We’re making that 14 foot wide it’s only one way.

MR. VAN NESS:

Is there going to be new separate entrances for each of the different uses of the building now?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Each tenant you’re talking about?

MR. VAN NESS:

Yeah is each tenant going to have its own separate entrance now?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Once they get through the common corridor yes.

MR. VAN NESS:

Okay so entry to the building itself will still be the common . . . the one common entry that exists today?
MR. PLOUSSAS:

I’m not sure I think I have to defer that to the architect.

MR. SELVAGGI:

We have another witness.

MR. VAN NESS:

Thank you.  Well I’ll mention my statement anyway is the issue then be handicapped parking. 

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We do have handicapped parking on the site.

MR. VAN NESS:

I know that you do.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

And we believe it’s where it should be.

MR. VAN NESS:

It’s accurate for the design of the building today.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Right.

MR. VAN NESS:

But if you have new entrances for different businesses in different areas now they may have to be reshuffled.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

And if they do we will go over that with the Construction Code Official and make the appropriate modifications.

MR. VAN NESS:

Because I’d like to hear some testimony about where those entrances will be.

MR. WEISS:

Greg we were talking about the stormwater management.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yeah we are asking for a waiver for the stormwater management because we believe it’s adequate that it can handle this diminumous increase in impervious coverage.  I want to turn now to Gene Buczynski’s review letter of March 11, 2011 we are in receipt of it the only condition that I see as far as I read the report is on page 3 number 3 the site plan application should be revised to show 56 proposed parking space which we’ll take care of and we need to obtain certification from the Morris County Soil Conservation District which we have already.  We have a conditional approval from the Morris County Soil Conservation District dated March 23, 2011, we have satisfied the conditional approval.  We got a letter from the Morris County Soil Conservation District on April 14, 2011 and we have a Stormwater Discharge Permit from the NJDEP dated April 14, 2011. 
MR. BUZAK:

What was that date Mr. Ploussas?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

April 14, 2011.  I think that concludes my direct presentation I’ll answer any questions the Board might have.  

MR. WEISS:

Before we go to the Planning Board Gene I know Greg summarized his version of your report did you have any other comment that you want to . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Not really my report basically addressed what Mr. Ploussas said tonight too regarding the two waivers for the EIS and Stormwater Management Plan I have no concerns with either as far as granting a waiver.

MR. WEISS:

That was going to be my question did you have a concern about the Stormwater Management.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Not at all as Greg has said it’s more than adequate to serve the property.
MR. WEISS:

Yeah I think the Planning Board had no problem with the EIS flavor and it sounds like Gene is telling us he’s got no problem with the Stormwater Management waiver.  Anybody on the Planning Board have any questions for Greg?  

MR. MCGROARTY:
One.

MR. WEISS:

Chuck go ahead.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Greg the sign, any changes to signage for tenants will follow the sign manual there will be no deviation from it?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes that is correct.  This property is subject to the ITC Sign Manual that the Board approved 25 years ago and there are no deviations contemplated.  

MR. WEISS:

Okay what I’d like to do at this point then is open it to the public.  If anybody in the public has any questions for Mr. Ploussas based on the testimony that he just gave will you please step to the podium state your name.  Seeing none thanks Greg.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Mike I’ll open it back up to you.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Yeah just one other witness a principal for 350 Clark Drive LLC Mr. Dan Cohen.

MR. WEISS:

Good evening Mr. Cohen, Mr. Buzak will swear you in.

(DAN COHEN SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Please be seated state your name and business address for the record spelling your last name.

MR. COHEN:

Dan Cohen (C-O-H-E-N) 333 Route 46 in Mountain Lakes, New Jersey.

MR. BUZAK:

Thank you Mr. Cohen.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Mr. Cohen what’s your connection with 350 Clark Drive LLC?

MR. COHEN:

I’m a member of the LLC I’m the managing member.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Okay so you’re responsible for the oversight of this building?

MR. COHEN:

Yes.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Currently we’re showing Building A, B and C how much of the building is being leased?

MR. COHEN:

Why don’t I go up to the . . .

MR. SELVAGGI:

Sure and you’re referring to A-2.  

MR. COHEN:

Building B has been leased to a company called Vistar or otherwise known as Performance Food Group and it’s basically a warehouse freezer distribution of foods.  And while I’m here I’ll just address the issue which may relate to handicapped parking because it was brought up.  This tenant is primarily going to be accessing the space from the main parking lot which has the handicapped spots right at it through the common corridor and then into the warehouse.  We are building some extra spots also primarily for some warehouse personnel to be able to access parts of the warehouse.
MR. SELVAGGI:

Where would those people enter the building?  You said the common corridor . . .

MR. COHEN:

Most people will enter it in what used to be the employee entrance for the building which is a big entrance and lobby here and then sometimes go into the office building, although the office building has a separate access in this corner.  Some will turn that way, some will turn into here and some will be able to go to this next space which is about 180,000 square feet I believe and that’s been leased to the Maneschevits Corporation, another food company.  All of these are subject to approval of what they need to get done.  Their primary access will be off the main parking lot as well they will have access through the employee entrance but we will be creating a separate entrance for them in this corner of the building.  These entrances exists already they’re just going to be used in different ways from the way they have in the past.  

MR. SELVAGGI:

And to I think it was Mr. Cavanaugh’s question both of these large tenants are going to be warehouse distribution only no manufacturing or assembly.

MR. COHEN:

That’s correct and in fact this tenant is going to have minimal . . . they’re both going to have minimal offices.  I think there’s going to be a total of 3,000 square feet of office for this Vistar and Maneschevits is going to use the existing offices that are in this corner of the building. 

MR. SELVAGGI:

So in your opinion more than adequate parking to service your tenants?

MR. COHEN:

Yeah we’re comfortable with the parking for these uses.  The use is significantly less than Calvin Klein was.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Okay and the additional docks, loading docks that are being proposed those are tenant specific requests?

MR. COHEN:

Yes these three go with Maneschevits and while this plan doesn’t show it Area C has a demising line running like this it’s what was the production area which is air conditioned, drop ceiling and is actually separated from the warehouse on this site and this warehouse.  We’re going to be converting that to warehouse.  For them to actually use this area because of the distances involved they feel that they need these loading docks.  At the same time we’re going to be doing some interior renovations to the building because this area was a sunken area which was liquid high hazard storage area which is going to be demolished and just be a staging area with a loading facility adjacent to it.  This truck parking is for Vistar they needed I believe it’s 9 trucks we believe that we might have been able to handle it in this area but we, and they were concerned that some day if we need more parking we don’t want to be limited by their truck storage plus I think the truck storage looks nicer hidden behind the building than in our main parking lot.  The parking that we’re adding here is just so these people can park closer to where they work.  
MR. SELVAGGI:

And how quickly does Performance Foods and Maneschevits want to get in there?

MR. COHEN:

Performance Food lease is supposed to commence subject to tonight at the beginning of May.  Maneschevits June 1st, with Maneschevits we will some of this can be done post occupancy but we need to get working on here.  This building has been relatively vacant for a good period of time and we were able to get these leases and we’re pretty pleased to do it and we’re under some pressure.  

MR. SELVAGGI:

And it leads into, and I hope I’m not being too presumptuous, but if we were to get an approval and I know Boards all through New Jersey always struggle with this one but we would hope that the applicant be given an opportunity to proceed at its own risk to start with some of these site improvements in order to meet you know the goals and objectives of getting these tenants in here.  And I know very often that’s a question that is deferred to Mr. Buzak and the professional staff we plainly know and I’ll ask you the question Mr. Cohen you understand that if you were to do that you’re preceding at your own risk and anything that . . .
MR. COHEN:

Well you’ll have to advise me on what my risks are but yeah.

MR. SELVAGGI:

So that’s why we carry malpractice.  But anyway that is a request that we would hope you’d entertain, these are two you know attractive tenants it’s going to make a viable use of the building and again it’s something we . . . . well first of all I hope you grant the approvals otherwise it becomes a mute point.  But if so if we can get consideration on that we’d appreciate it.  

MR. WEISS:

Does anybody on the Planning Board have any questions for Mr. Cohen?  Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

Environmentally speaking the removal of that hazard area will this new use be less of a threat to the environment in the area?  Or will it improve the safety of the environment of the area?

MR. COHEN:

Well the previous use for that area was where they put all their high hazard materials these were totes of chemicals, solvents that went into making perfumes so it needed to be explosion proof and what’s going in there now is just food.
MR. VAN NESS:

So your representation would be that there would be less of a hazard potential there than before.

MR. COHEN:

It will be a completely different category of use than a high hazard use.

MR. VAN NESS:

Thank you.

MR. SELVAGGI:

Unless Gefilte Fish has a certain explosion point I think we’re okay right?

MR. FLEISCHNER:
Please I’ve eaten enough of it already for three days.

MR. WEISS:

John?

MR. CAVANAUGH:
In Building A that little area you haven’t mentioned can you tell us what tenants are in there currently?

MR. COHEN:

Building A is a three story office building that is going to remain the same.  It’s rented to various tenants Anthem Worldwide is a marketing company, Lyon Ribbon is a ribbon manufacturer with regional offices here, Mars rents part of the downstairs there and we have some vacant space.
MR. CAVANAUGH:
No challenge with parking then everybody is happy at the moment?

MR. COHEN:

No and these leases will bring the building up to in the low 90 percent occupancy rate so we’re comfortable that we’ll have more than enough parking when the offices are finished leasing.  

MR. WEISS:

Anybody else?  Is there anybody from the public that has any comments for Mr. Cohen based on the testimony given?  Seeing none I just have a question for Mr. Buzak.  Oh I’m sorry sir if you could come to the podium and you’ll state your name for the record.

MR. HAMERS:

Ladies and gentlemen my name is Rene Hamers I live near the cul-de-sac and we’ve had some experience dealing with the ITC.  When the original Calvin Klein building was proposed we went to the meetings here in town hall with the representatives of the Trade Zone and even though the required by Code setback is about our buffer zone is about 50 feet there was concerns from the people living in the area that we will be subject to a lot of noise from the diesel engines from the trucks and also the diesel fumes.  So at that time the management of the ITC promised us that they will give us 250 feet buffer zone, wooded buffer zone because the whole area at that time was wooded instead of the Code requirement in this town of 50 feet.  And one of the representatives of the Trade Zone even came to our house where we had a meeting with all of our neighbors and they promised to keep the 200 feet of buffer zone.  However in the ensuing years when there was a change of the guard in Mt. Olive Township you know the Council members, the Mayor, the Planning Board and everything was forgotten and no one recorded at the meeting the promises made by the ITC so the ITC took advantage of it and they located the building much closer than they had promised to us.  So we are subject to diesel engine noise and if the wind is going to wrong way we get the fumes of the diesel engines through our windows especially in the summer months and also the air conditioning equipment on the roof of these buildings is getting old and they are very noisy.  And there was also something going on that in order to keep my two neighbors who are living next to the property of the ITC, to keep them from complaining that they were moving the buildings closer the management of the ITC give each of my neighbors $5,000.00.  And they made them sign a paper that they would not complain about the fact that the ITC was not keeping their promise and after they accepted the money they put their homes on sale and disappeared leaving the rest of us of course with the ensuing problems.  So now they are proposing more unloading dock bays for the trucks and I’d like to know how we are going to be affected?  The aerial view doesn’t show the buildings which are close to the property of the ITC.  I don’t know if it was done intentionally but I am very nervous dealing with the ITC because they have shown in the past that they do not keep promises and that they do not care about the neighbors.  So my question is how are we going to be affected by these new loading docks and are these . . . . when they have all of these trucks at these loading docks they usually leave their engines running.  I don’t know for what reason but we are getting the noise and the fumes from these diesel engines and I would like to know you know more precisely what the environmental impact is on us the neighbors living in the area.
MR. WEISS:

Okay so we have a couple of questions and let me just summarize what you’re asking.  I guess the first question that comes up is the buffer between this gentleman’s home and the end of the 350 Clark Drive property.  The second question seems to be operational as far as trucks keeping running, trucks that are remaining running. 

MR. HAMERS:

Yeah why do you leave your engines running all of the time because we are dealing with the noise and also you know there is newer equipment available today, air conditioning equipment that runs much quieter?  And I have worked in industrial buildings where they put sound barriers; enclose the air conditioning equipment in a sound barrier wall so that the neighbors would not have to suffer from all of these noises.

MR. WEISS:

Are you talking about the mechanicals that are on top of the roof?

MR. HAMERS:

Pardon me?

MR. WEISS:

You’re talking about the air conditioners that are on the roof.

MR. HAMERS:

Yes the air conditioner on the roof and they are becoming old and very noisy and then all of the buildings that we have in . . . . I worked in many industrial areas that they put sound barriers around the equipment so that the neighbors would not have to suffer with the noise.
MR. WEISS:

Mike do you know if the mechanicals are screened on the building?

MR. SELVAGGI:

I don’t know.  
MR. COHEN:

Although the main, the heavy mechanicals are on the office building which is . . . .
MR. BUZAK:

Mr. Cohen you have to come up because you’re not being picked up.

MR. COHEN:

The biggest mechanicals are on the office building which I believe is letter A which is probably the furthest away from the residential area.

MR. SELVAGGI:

If you actually look at what we showed as exhibit A-1 which was handed out Building A from the aerial you can see all of the stuff on that Building A.  

MR. COHEN:

The mechanicals that’s closest to the residential is basically an office air conditioning which would be the same size like a 5,000 square foot house because that’s how big the office area is.  The big equipment is on the office building which is A which is further towards the inside of the park away from the houses.  I’m not in any way arguing with anything that the gentleman is saying I’m pointing out where the equipment is.
MR. WEISS:

John has a question?

MR. MANIA:

A couple of things.  We could check the decibels with those roof . . . .
MR. COHEN:

Yeah and I believe, and that’s probably more of a legal question that we have an obligation to meet the laws of the town.  

MR. MANIA:

Also with diesel fuel at $4.00 a gallon I don’t think anybody wants to leave their trucks running.

MR. SELVAGGI:

 Well the interesting thing Greg you’ve kind of oriented the houses.  I mean the loading docks the additional loading docks are actually going to be away from the side of the residential site correct?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Well they’ll be hidden from the residential.

MR. SELVAGGI:

So there’s no proposal to cut into the existing buffer.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

No we’re not disturbing any woods out in the back there now along the Lozier Road property line.  The building itself Building B is the closest to the . . . .

MR. SELVAGGI:

You’re on Lozier?

MR. HAMERS:

Yes so this is my neighbor’s home here and I’m right next to it.  

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Okay.

MR. HAMERS:

You know and my other neighbor here he is the most affected of them all because there is not much of a wooded buffer zone here so he looks out on all of these buildings.  And he is the most affected by the noise and the fumes of all of these trucks.

MR. SELVAGGI:

I don’t want to be . . . I mean he’s not here you know what are you experiencing?

MR. HAMERS:

Well I hear the noise especially in the summertime and occasionally when the wind goes the wrong direction then we inhale the diesel fumes.  And also I would like to know this area is kind of narrow here all right?  Are there going to be loading docks on this side?
MR. PLOUSSAS:

No there’s two loading docks here on this side and three loading docks here.

MR. HAMERS:

But you’re not going to take any more of the buffer zone away here right?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

That’s correct we’re not disturbing or taking any more trees down.

MR. HAMERS:

It would have been nice if the ITC when they did not adhere to that original plan or promises that they would have planted some more Evergreens along this border here which would have you know helped to muffle the sound of all of these engines running all of the time.  
MR. WEISS:

Mr. Cohen do they have to keep their trucks running for any reason?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Well isn’t there’s a State law that you can’t leave the diesel trucks running?  I think Mr. Van Ness knows about that.

MR. MANIA:

Not more than three minutes you’re supposed to have your truck idling, that’s law three minutes.  Am I correct Scott?  Yes three minutes.

MR. COHEN:

They have to follow the law the tenants aren’t here today . . .
MR. HAMERS:

Especially in the wintertime I think they kind of break the law a little bit you know because of course it’s close and these truck drivers like to stay warm too but I mean they should pass an ordinance in this Township requiring that the trucks in this Trade Zone area especially when they are on these loading docks next to the neighbors that they should shut their engines down.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Is there any trucks on that site now?  It’s all office buildings right?

MR. SELVAGGI:

What’s that?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Is there any trucks in that site right now at this point?

MR. COHEN:

Actually we have some temporary tenants in the warehouse that are using the loading docks.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay so there are some trucks there.

MR. COHEN:

Yeah there is a lot of trucks there.

MR. WEISS:

Greg were you able to calculate the distance, the buffer say?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes the closest building is approximately 250 feet to the property line that’s Building B approximately.  The existing wooded buffer ranges from a minimum of 160 feet to 200 feet and that’s not going to be disturbed at all.  And I do recall something about these neighbors up on Lozier Road Lot 1 and Lot 21 they were given the option of additional landscaping buffering or money.  But they chose the money.

MR. MANIA:

And moved.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Well we can’t control that.
MR. HAMERS:

They chose the money and of course (inaudible).

MR. PLOUSSAS:

As far as what was built out there I guarantee you that whatever the Planning Board approved was built.  There was no deviation to any Planning Board approvals.

MR. MANIA:

I was there Greg.

MR. WEISS:

But you don’t remember if there was a guarantee of 200 feet as the gentleman said.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

I don’t know what arrangements the ITC made directly with any of the neighbors.

MR. MANIA:

Not that I’m doubting the gentleman’s word.

MR. HAMERS:

Well the thing is during the meeting with the, I think it was the Planning Board they promised to give us 250 feet.

MR. MANIA:

Not the Planning Board couldn’t have promised that.

MR. HAMERS:

Well Mr. Leslie Smith was there and Leslie Smith was also at our home and he said he’d keep the 250 foot buffer zone wooded.  But what happened was they built the building and the building is probably 200 feet away from the nearest home but they wanted this area for the truck turnaround.  So instead of leaving this area wooded they just took all of the trees down and paved over the area, but that was not the original idea.  The original idea was to leave it wooded as a buffer zone for the noise you know for the residents living in the area. 

MR. WEISS:

If the applicant provided testimony at that time that they would provide 250 feet that would be part of the resolution.

MR. HAMERS:

But the only trouble is I don’t remember anyone taking notes.

MR. WEISS:

Well it doesn’t necessarily work that way and actually maybe to keep the conversation going go back to the microphone so we can hear you.  Just to be clear it doesn’t work that way where nobody taking notes, anytime you come in front of the Planning Board there is lots of notes being taken as to what testimony is being provided and that testimony whether it being honest as you say is recorded and made as part of the resolution or agreement that we made with the township.  So if perhaps at that time the developer was proposing one set of setbacks and due to some restraints of some kind they had to change it it sounds like they came back and made an offer of a compromise to the neighbors by either money or . . . .

MR. HAMERS:

Yeah but the trouble is they did not let the rest of the neighbors know.  This was done secretively and one of the neighbors just found out by accident.  And when I confronted my neighbor who was good friends with us that there (inaudible) family at the time you know they were very embarrassed and they you know actually broke up our friendship.  Because they accepted this, no one knew it because Leslie Smith made this arrangement with those two neighbors alone but he never notified the rest of the neighbors that they were not going to adhere to that wooded area but instead use it as a parking lot turn around you know removing all of the trees.  And of course the present neighbors who bought those homes from the neighbors who got paid off they are the ones who are suffering the most with the noise and the fumes.  

MR. PLOUSSAS:

I’d like to point out to the Board to the gentleman is talking about this area back here.  This is Lozier Road these trees that are heavy in the green are existing trees that are the buffer now and that’s where it ranges from about 160 feet to 200 feet.  In addition right now there’s 11 loading docks here that when trucks park there they come this way and back out this way.  When we upgrade this fire lane to a truck aisle we’ll be reducing the amount of traffic coming across the back because they will go out this way.  So it will improve the situation there.  

MR. MANIA:

Mr. Chairman I just want to set the record straight.

MR. WEISS:

Sure John.

MR. MANIA:

There was nothing secretive about the Planning Board.  If there was anything going on it was between the applicant and the neighbors.

MR. HAMERS:

No I know . . . .

MR. MANIA:

There’s no secrets.

MR. HAMERS:

The secretiveness was between Mr. Leslie Smith and my two neighbors okay?  There was nothing to do with the Planning Board.
MR. MANIA:

I just wanted to set the record straight.

MR. HAMERS:

Yeah so I didn’t accuse you of being secretive it was the Trade Zone who chose to deceive us by dealing only with these two neighbors and paying them off, that’s actually what happened.

MR. WEISS:

Gene would it be sensible that if it was a change as this gentleman explains and that they needed to get a little closer than originally testified would it be common for the applicant to sit down with the affected neighbors only?  I mean to me it makes sense they would only speak to those two neighbors if everyone else is in a conforming distance.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I would think so.

MR. WEISS:

Go ahead Joe.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
Howie isn’t there . . . I mean it’s a concern I know when Jim Smith was on the Planning Board he had the same concern where many times we on the Planning Board will come up with design specifications from the standpoint of the resolution.  And then there’s a separate construction agreement where changes are made and yet the Planning Board never hears about these changes afterwards.  And when there is changes in the field that can affect homeowners I would think that the Planning Board or homeowners would have to be notified before . . . . now the question is what becomes a significant change obviously.  But I know that there have been changes made in construction meetings where what the Planning Board approved and what was built . . . .
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I disagree with that finding.  I’m sorry that doesn’t happen.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
I’m not saying you Gene . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No but it doesn’t happen Joe.

MR. MANIA:

I to would respectively disagree with that.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
I mean we can talk about individual cases which we shouldn’t at this meeting but I can give you certain cases where there were changes and it does not (inaudible).  What I’m saying is if there were changes the Planning Board was not part of those changes, members of the Planning Board at any time because we don’t necessarily know what those changes . . . . it may be in the future if there are changes it should come back to the Planning Board.  

MR. MANIA:

Well I think as Howie stated that the two residents that were affected Mr. Smith went to them and made a proposal.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Something like this particular instance nobody would probably even know.  

MR. MANIA:

Right.  It has nothing to do with changes in the field.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
In the field or application there was . . .
MR. SELVAGGI:

The (inaudible) is the application at the time based on all resolutions was fully conforming.  What may have happened is the developer at that time may have bought off the objections but I don’t know if that necessarily resulted in changes to this site plan.  He may have bought their silence but I . . . .

MR. MANIA:

That we don’t know.

MR. SELVAGGI:

No I don’t know, I don’t know but my point is if this was fully conforming I mean the town records you know there was a Building Permit issued, C.O.’s issued I don’t know if you would have gotten to a point of you know occupancy if the plans did not jive with what was there and built.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The building (inaudible), the building was not addressed . . .

MR. SELVAGGI:

That’s exactly right nor did the parking lot.

MR. WEISS:

The only question was is the buffer.
MR. PLOUSSAS:

Well I don’t recall offhand because I haven’t looked it up in years but I believe the buffer between a residential use and a commercial use is 50 feet.  Maybe Chuck or Gene knows.

MR. MANIA:

So you exceeded that.

MR. PLOUSSAS:

We exceeded it by, well you know the least is 160 up to 200.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
And also Mr. Chairman what took place in the past really has nothing to do with this application.
MR. WEISS:

That’s very true Joe.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
What we’re dealing with here are the existing conditions and whether or not the applicant meets the requirements in asking for the appropriate waivers, etc.  But unfortunately, and  I can understand the gentleman’s concern that happening in the past, we have to deal with what we have here today.  

MR. MANIA:

Greg could we possibly have the applicant put a sign up that the trucks are not to idle more than three minutes?  Can we do that?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Sure yeah. 
MR. MCGROARTY:
Like (inaudible).

MR. MANIA:

And that goes for winter or summer.

MR. WEISS:

Well that would probably be something John directed to Mr. Cohen who is . . .

MR. MANIA:

Well that’s what I meant I mean Mr. Cohen I’m addressing it through Mr. Ploussas . . .

MR. PLOUSSAS:

I mean we would make the sign and other than that we’d get together with Scott from the Police Department . . .

MR. COHEN:

I’m uncomfortable with this suggestion because I don’t know exactly how trucks do their operation you know during hours or after hours.  I feel much more comfortable in saying that we will comply with all noise ordinances, odor ordinances, whatever is the law in the town.  I can certainly make an attempt to ask our tenants to be considerate of that but that might be in the process of doing a warehouse business.

MR. WEISS:

I don’t think it’s unreasonable.

MR. COHEN:

I don’t know if it’s unreasonable or not.

MR. WEISS:

No, no I think the solution can be very reasonable to comply with the law.

MR. COHEN:

I obviously agree that we will comply with . . .

MR. WEISS:

Scott is that . . . .

MR. VAN NESS:

Yeah I agree the things that people need to understand is that if you’re dealing with refrigerated items although that truck might be turned off and parked the items we need on the refrigerated vehicles which the compressor has to run and many times they could be running off of diesel and . . . but that’s an exemption in the rules so it’s not a violation to have that compressor running it’s the maintenance of goods.  So therefore if that’s your concern it’s not a violation to have that working.  
MR. MANIA:

We’re talking about the main engine that drives the truck.

MR. VAN NESS:

The truck engine has to be generally turned off.

MR. MANIA:

I work for a company where there was signs all over the yard you were allowed to idle three minutes, period.  If you were caught idling more you were sent home.  

MR. HAMERS:

It’s a possibility that they could put signs on the loading dock when the truck (inaudible) come in the truck drivers shut down their engines you know?
MR. WEISS:

And I think the solution is going to be whatever the law allows them that’s what they’ll be allowed to do and perhaps if it says three minutes then the sign will say you know trucks cannot idle . . . 

MR. COHEN:

We can do that but I think you should take comfort in Mr. Ploussas’ statement and you might want to take a look at what Mr. Ploussas said that currently the trucks that use this loading dock go through Calvin Klein’s area came through here passed through . . .

MR. HAMERS:

We always hear the trucks coming around and I can see the trucks too.

MR. COHEN:

Right and they would come in and then they would exit this way as well.  The plan now is going to have these trucks exit through this improved driveway . . .

MR. HAMERS:

But this is very narrow at the moment and they . . . .

MR. COHEN:

Well they’re not allowed to use it there is signs that prevent them from using it so once this is completed all of these trucks will be exiting this way as opposed to going through your area.

MR. HAMERS:

What are these things here?  Are these loading docks too?

MR. COHEN:

No those are just trailers that we’ll be storing out there.  They’ll just be parked and then the truck can leave without them.  So I think that this plan is going to improve the situation somewhat, you’re still living next to a warehouse but I believe this is better. 

MR. HAMERS:

But (inaudible) if you (inaudible) you know I don’t know if it’s at all part of your application but if you consider at least a building and I don’t think they are that expensive to build some noise barrier on the side of the . . . if let’s say if the air conditioning units are here . . .



(Inaudible – too many people speaking at once)

MR. MANIA:

Gentlemen somebody can’t pick that microphone up.

MR. COHEN:

These aren’t air conditioned areas here.  These are just the heated warehouse with interior internal hanging gas heaters.

MR. WEISS:

Gentleman I think the bottom line is that you’re not changing the building so we don’t need to have any kind of conversation about the building.  The building is not changing the building that’s built is according to the approved plans.  I think we’re just absolutely wasting our time talking about something that already exists that’s not being changed.

MR. HAMERS:

Are there any new air conditioning units built on?

MR. WEISS:

There’s none I don’t think we’ve heard any testimony about anything being new am I correct Mr. Ploussas?

MR. PLOUSSAS:

Yes.

MR. WEISS:

The changes that are made were testified that there’s a couple of loading docks, Mr. Ploussas told us there’s addition of parking spaces, that’s it.  That’s what we’re here to talk about.
MR. HAMERS:

All right but as long as you are not going to take any more trees away.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No, no.

MR. WEISS:

And it sounds like the testimony was given that the disturbance in that area is going to be lessened by the addition of the road I’m not sure, it seems to be an improvement over what’s there.  We took your suggestion we’re going to have signs and there will be notices that the trucks must stay within the law.  I’m not sure where else we can go, we can speak about this for four more hours the disturbance is minor, the solutions have been made.  Steve go ahead.
MR. BEDELL:

No they’re saying if they do add another A.C. unit I mean it’s allowable we can’t stop another unit by being added.

MR. WEISS:

I guess we’re talking about a building permit at that point right?

MR. COHEN:

Yes, yes it will be a building permit.

MR. WEISS:

It’s not the review of this Planning Board.

MR. BEDELL:

Yeah that’s what I’m saying yeah, yeah.

MR. WEISS:

Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

I think we can also ask the applicant to maybe do some preventative maintenance on . . . to help maybe alleviate any of the complaints for the noise.  I don’t think we can make them do it but we can ask them to do it.

MR. WEISS:

I think that’s fine I think the applicant has always been very receptive to concerns from the residents.  Anybody else from the public?  Seeing none I’ll close it to the public.

MR. MANIA:

Wait.

MR. WEISS:

Oh okay sorry I didn’t see that.  Sir can you step to the microphone and state your name and address for the record.

MR. COSTANTINO:
My name is Tom Costantino I live at 124 Lozier and basically my concern is . . . 

MR. WEISS:

One second, Catherine did you get that name?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
What was your last name?

MR. COSTANTINO:
Lozier Road, Costantino.  My concern is the lighting it’s really like my only complaint is that the lighting at night comes through the . . . . it’s a wooded area I have a large buffer zone and I would just like to ask about the possibility of some changes that could be made.  Simple ones you know if the lights were on a timer and turned off at night I would be completely satisfied.  But maybe incorporate some low impact lighting to any changes.  I mean literally I can see it from my bedroom sometimes I’m like where am I going to put a pine tree to block that one out.
MR. WEISS:

I don’t want to interrupt but have you contacted the building owner?

MR. COSTANTINO:
No you know we just moved in I mean I’ve been living there . . . I bought the property just about four months we’re living there.  And it’s something that we really didn’t know about until at night when you go to sleep and you go ah darn.  So it’s basically like a glow off the building I don’t even know if it’s necessary but you know that’s for the record that’s my concern.  
MR. WEISS:

I can make a quick suggestion that perhaps Mr. Cohen if you can maybe sit down with Mr. Costantino?

MR. COHEN:

Yeah and first of all we have to comply with the law about lighting but if there’s a way that we can shade or do something with the lights . . .

MR. WEISS:

Sometimes a light that is within your right to have is still a little annoying and a simple adjustment can make everyone’s life a little bit easier.  That’s probably the best way to handle it.  Again understanding that they’re not coming in and presenting any new lighting so it’s . . .

MR. COSTANTINO:
I understand that yeah.

MR. WEISS:

But sometimes just exactly what you did is the best way to handle that situation.

MR. COSTANTINO:
Sounds reasonable I’ll contact you.  Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Okay.

MR. COHEN:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Anybody else from the public?  Seeing none I’ll close it to the public.  Mike?

MR. SELVAGGI:

Yeah allow me just to summarize, we are seeking preliminary and final site plan approval I think the changes in and of themselves don’t require any variances, some would argue that the approval is warranted as a matter of right.  We do need the three design waivers the stormwater management plan, the EIS and as well as the parking the rational for all of that has been given hopefully we can (inaudible) the wisdom to that.  And then the only thing that you know we’re really coming on bended knee is the ability to proceed and what would really happen is see if we applied for a building permit tomorrow the building officer is probably going to say I don’t have the final resolution.  But whenever that is and you know it’s really just a question of how is the word given if that’s the direction we want to go to enable the building permit to be issued in advance.  Because your next meeting I think is what May 12th?  So I mean we lose almost a month.
MR. WEISS:

Mr. Buzak is there any suggestion that you could make?

MR. BUZAK:

This Board generally acts with memorializing the resolutions (inaudible).  The action being taken the night that the Board votes the resolution merely memorializes that in a written form and as you know only those members who voted in favor of the action are permitted to vote.  And the reason for that is because it is memorializing its not new action that’s being taken.  We can’t really control how the Township handles the issuance of permits or allows people to start or not start.  In some municipalities the fact that a resolution is a memorializing resolution is sufficient.  That is the night that the Board takes the action like tonight if the applicant would go to the Construction Official tomorrow and the Construction Official could conform with the Planning Administrator that the Board did in fact vote in favor of the action and there will be a memorializing resolution in certain towns the permit is issued and they go forward because the action has been taken already it’s just a matter of getting the paperwork to catch up.  So all I would suggest is that we continue to act in that way we can urge the Township or the Construction Official to consider that but we don’t have any control over that.  

MR. WEISS:

It doesn’t sound like a good answer but maybe it’s a . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Well it’s a good answer.

MR. WEISS:

It’s a very good answer.

MR. MANIA:

It wasn’t the answer you’re looking for you gave the right answer.

MR. COHEN:

I understand.

MR. SELVAGGI:

If that message gets conveyed I mean we’ll take our chances with the Building Inspector to see if he’ll . . .

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
Well Mr. Chairman he’ll probably call me to see what action . . . I can sign off on the building permit file you know the envelope.
MR. WEISS:

Most of the things you want to do are internal?

MR. COHEN:

Well we want to start the site work on the docks pretty soon.  And you know I’m not sure that the two weeks that you’re talking about is going to make a huge . . . that much difference.  I don’t know where we are, I was just concerned that we would have to wait to do anything until a resolution was read and approved and some period went by.  Based on Mr. Buzak’s comments there’s not much more I can say other than you know if you approve the . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well regarding site improvements . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Well we typically would be doing it in 30 days not two weeks.

MR. MANIA:

Two weeks that’s why when I heard two weeks I . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Regarding site improvements you know for large jobs we do developer’s agreements and that would take a couple of months.  But these type of projects on existing sites we’ve handled with minimal improvements we do a zoning permit and all they’re requested to do is submit an estimate of the improvements so they can submit inspection escrows.  There’s no bonds being taken for something minor like this.  So that portion of it can be handled fairly quick as long as again the Construction Code Official doesn’t have a problem. 

MR. WEISS:

So it sounds like if you work with the Construction Official who will work with Catherine you might be able to get your project started.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
Assuming it passes.

MR. WEISS:

Assuming it passes right.

MR. SELVAGGI:

And I didn’t mean to put the heat on Mr. Buzak.
MR. WEISS:

He feels no heat.  I think we’ve heard plenty . . .

MR. SELVAGGI:

Yes Mr. Chairman you’re absolutely right.

MR. MANIA:

Mr. Chairman I’d like . . . 

MR. WEISS:

Well hold on let me see if there’s anybody from the Planning Board and then I need to open it to the public.  

MR. FLEISCHNER:
After it’s open to the public if there is a resolution could Mr. Buzak explain what the resolution would cover?

MR. WEISS:

Let’s get to the motion first.  But first any other comments from the Planning Board?  Seeing none any other comments about anything over this application this evening?  Seeing none we’ll make a motion and then we’ll have Mr. Buzak discuss the resolution.

MR. MANIA:

Mr. Chairman I’d like to make a motion we approve PB 11-04 350 Clark Drive, LLC with the three design waivers and whatever our esteemed attorney can add to that.

MR. WEISS:

Can anyone second that?

MR. VAN NESS:

I’ll second that.  

MR. WEISS:

Okay thanks Scott.

MR. VAN NESS:

We’re going to go with the design waiver for the parking the waiver for the parking as opposed to the calculation thing right?

MR. WEISS:

Correct just a straight up waiver for the EIS and waiver from stormwater management plan and Mr. Buzak anything else?

MR. BUZAK:

No Mr. Chairman the resolution will set forth the improvements that are to be constructed and has been testified to by Mr. Ploussas.  I guess it was five new loading docks, 56 spaces, 10 trailer storage spaces.  The three waivers that were discussed would be approved parking, stormwater management and the EIS waiver.  The improvements would also include the fire lane widening and repaving and use for traffic circulation.  There are not really many conditions, the tenant will comply with the ITC sign manual, comply with all ordinance regulations regarding ordinance and statutory regulations and requirements regarding noise, running of engines, idling of engines and so forth.  And the last one I had Mr. Chairman was one that you raised at the end the applicant will meet with the neighbor whose name I didn’t get but I’ll get it from Catherine with regard to perhaps adjusting the lighting that would reduce the impact on the neighborhood adjacent to the site.  
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The only comment I have on that is regarding the parking, you mentioned the 56 spaces but also the elimination of 35 existing spaces.  

MR. WEISS:

Even though they’re eliminating 35 and adding 56?  You just want to have that in the record?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well yeah but when we say additional 56 that does not . . . 

MR. WEISS:

It’s a net of 21.

MR. BUZAK:

Right.

MR. WEISS:

Okay Mike that’s okay?

MR. SELVAGGI:

Perfect.

MR. WEISS:

Okay acceptable to Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

Yes.

MR. WEISS:

Any comments?

MR. BUZAK:

Oh and Mr. Chairman of course there will be the regular boiler plate kinds of conditions that we have in our resolutions.

MR. WEISS:

I would expect nothing less Mr. Buzak.

MR. BUZAK:

I didn’t think you would.

MR. WEISS:

Catherine roll call please.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
John Cavanaugh
- yes




Joe Fleischner

- yes




Rene Gadelha

- yes




John Mania

- yes




Nelson Russell

- yes




Jim Staszak

- yes




Scott Van Ness

- yes




Steve Bedell

- yes




Howie Weiss

- yes

MR. SELVAGGI:

Thank you very, very much we appreciate it.

MR. COHEN:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

I think we’ll just take a five minute break.



APPLICATION #PB 11-09 DEER PATH MONTESSORI SCHOOL

MR. WEISS:

The next item on the agenda this evening is PB 11-09 Deer Path Montessori School preliminary and final site plan with variances – 425 Sand Shore Road Block 8301, Lot 7.  I guess we have Mr. Frank Creegan and Ken Sauter is the attorney.  Ken welcome.

MR. SAUTER:

Thank you.  For the record Ken Sauter with the firm of Berman, Sauter, Record & Jardim in Morristown I represent the applicant which is the Deer Path Montessori School.  With me is Kristina Vlossak she is the Director of Education if that’s the right title of the Deer Path Montessori School.  I know you’ve issued reports.  Questions were raised generally with respect to the conduct of operations and activities at the site and Kristina is able to speak to those kinds of issues.  She probably can also address the issues with respect to what’s planned on the interior of the building.  This is a preexisting building the proposal is to do generally interior modifications of the first floor classroom space the outside remains basically unchanged with a couple of minor, what I will refer to as minor changes.  That’s the portico at the entranceway, that’s the handicapped ramp, a playground area in the front of the building there’s no room in the back of the building and I think that’s the . . . and the enclosed dumpster area towards the back line of the property.  I don’t know if you want me to go through a more formal presentation with our Director or respond to your . . . .

MR. WEISS:

No let’s do this why don’t we swear in Ms. Vlossak and then you can perhaps have her . . . .

(KRISTINA VLOSSAK SWORN IN FOR THE RECORD)

MR. BUZAK:

Please be seated.  State your name and business address for the record please spelling your last name.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Kristina Vlossak (V-L-O-S-S-A-K) I’m the Director of Education at Deer Path Montesorri School.  We’re currently located at 429 Route 46 East that’s in Paragon Village.

MR. BUZAK:

 Thank you Ms. Vlossak.
MR. SAUTER:

I guess just a little bit of housekeeping.  I’m not sure the matter was deemed complete.

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
You received a letter.

MR. SAUTER:

Okay.  Kristina would you just basically describe what happens at your current operations, how that translate to what you propose to do at this property.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Okay Deer Path Montessori School is a preschool and Kindergarten program we have extended care hours both before and after our program and we are a Montessori School in that the philosophy of education that we use to teach.  We’re licensed as a child care center in New Jersey through the Department of Children and Families Office of Licensing.  Our licensing number is 14DEE0001.  All preschools that don’t go to higher levels are child care centers it’s the same designation.  We’ve been at the Paragon Village location for five years we were in the Flanders School building for 24 years before that and we moved to Paragon Village at the time that that building was sold.  We’ve had these same programs the preschool and Kindergarten and the care there, the building is very welcoming it’s got a lot of extra space but it’s much too large for us the rent has become unaffordable.  The footprint of the building made renovation unlikely, extremely costly and the landlord was not open to the possibility of helping us in renegotiating future leases.  So we spent more than two years searching for new properties both new construction, existing properties in multi-tenant locations as well as stand along buildings and we found ourselves with two choices neither which were ideal but both met our requirements.  One was 58 Route 46 and the other was 425 Sand Shore Road.  The Route 46 location was newer, it was spotlessly clean, it required less renovation, it would have allowed us greater licensing as far as younger children.  But it was also a very difficult building for young children its very close to the highway, there would be a problem with traffic backing up onto Route 46 and there’s no access to Route 46 eastbound directly from that building.  The Sand Shore Road location had a well, had a septic, had more renovations had much higher licensing fees but we felt that the location being off of the main highway was more suitable to our needs as a preschool than the other location.  When we moved to Sand Shore our hope is to be licensed for 2-1/2 to 6 year olds it’s the license that we held for our first 24 years.  When we moved to Paragon Village they licensed us from birth however we only took children in from 2 years old we never went down to lower ages.  So the new licensing designation won’t affect any of the children in our school currently nor the functioning of any of our programs.  The Sand Shore hours and operations won’t change it’s again our core class programs.  Stepping Stones which is our youngest program, our preschool and our Kindergarten program with extended care beginning at 7:00 in the morning, core classes from 8:30 to either 11:30 or 2:30 depending on if they’re half day or full day child, and then extended care hours from 2:30 to 6:00 p.m. in the afternoon.  We currently have capacity for 85 children in the building; we currently have up to 65 children actually in the building on a daily basis.  Last year our enrollment was full with 72 students and 65 children in the building, this year our enrollment has suffered and we’ve only 57 students in total.  So at Sand Shore we don’t expect that the licensing which will allow us only 64 children will affect, again it won’t really affect our programs.  Our core programs are our preschool classes there’s half day from 8:30 to 11:30, stepping stones comes in a little bit later from 9:00 to 11:30 those are the 2-1/2 to young 3 year olds.  The full day programs are 8:30 to 2:30, the care is just in the morning and in the late afternoon it’s not throughout the day its only open to our current families and it’s not open to any siblings that are older.  So we’re strictly looking at that 2-1/2 to 6 year old age range.  There are about 5 or 6 children who use the morning care program and about 10 to 12 children who use the care program in the afternoon.  After 4:30 in the afternoon there are probably only 2 or 3 children left on a daily basis the majority of the children are home.  After school hours the only activities that are really planned throughout the year we have four board meetings and three parent meetings that are planned on a weeknight, you know evening weeknight.  In addition we have two to three open houses on a Saturday morning and then one family event that’s on a Sunday afternoon.  So we feel comfortable with the existing lighting in the parking lot for these purposes we’re really only a handful of people close to the building if we’re there at night at all.  We currently have 13 employees we will have 12 in that building.  We have 6 full-time teachers, 4 part-time teachers and 2 full-time administrators.  So 2 of our teaching staff arrive at 7:00 a.m. every day, other staff arrive between 8:00 and 8:30, full-day staff leave between 3:00 and 4:00 in the afternoon, half-day staff leave between 12:00 and 1:00 in the afternoon, and our late staff leave at 6:00 or before whenever the last child leaves.  It’s generally inside of the building.  Outside of the building the office of licensing requires us to have a play area, an outdoor play area for children 10 months and older who attend three or more hours a day and the space must be at least 30 square feet per child and we are looking for 64 children.  So a total of 1,920 square feet and in our plans we’ve included a play area that’s 2,000 square feet.  The playground is made up of grassy area and it has two separate play areas within it, these areas are on raised beds like garden beds one is a climbing tower and it has mulch underneath, the other is an arc and it’s a sand play area.  The fencing around this area that we’re suggesting is a 6 foot PVC white fencing, we’ve chosen it because it’s durable, it’s easy to maintain and the fencing we have similar fencing to this on our property now and it looks very much the same as it did four years ago when it was put in that seems to hold up.  We’ve chosen the higher closed style of fencing because we wanted to provide extra privacy and security for drive-by traffic as well as whoever might become our neighbor across the street.  Currently across the street is a half built industrial looking building, no tenants.  Licensing requires that the fencing be placed around the play area we can’t have a play area without it; it also requires that we have additional barriers to cars and traffic in terms of trees and shrubs on the curb which exists already.  There’s tree rows lining both sides of the property from the neighbors as well as most of the way across the front of the property and although it’s located in a visible part of the property the playground won’t be prominently visible to the neighbors except for the one directly across the street.  Parking issues, the staff parking will be along the far side of the lot the side furthest from the building and along the back of the lot.  The visitor parking will be the parking closest to the handicapped spaces and down that same side of the parking area.  For arrivals and dismissals when our children come we use a car line process that’s indicated on the map we’ve been doing this process for our whole history in both of our previous locations and it works very well for us it allows the children to separate very quickly from their parents, it allows the parents to get on with their day very, very quickly as well.  At 7:00 a.m. when the two staff members come in and open the building they’re usually there setting up and by themselves for a little while.  From 7:30 to 8:20 parents can walk their children in this is typically 4 to 6 cars in those 40 or 50 minutes.  At 8:30 we have an arrival for the majority of our classes its 35 to 40 cars, at 11:30 we have a drive-up dismissal time for our half day dismissal and that’s usually about 25 cars.  At 2:30 in the afternoon we have a full day dismissal again a drive-up car line and it’s usually about 20 cars.  From 2:30 to 6:00 p.m. people walk in to pick up their children and its about 8 to 10 cars over that 3-1/2 hours.
MR. MCGROARTY:
How many?  I’m sorry.

MS. VLOSSAK:

8 to 10 cars in that 3-1/2 hour period and really only a couple of cars, 2 cars probably after 4:30.  So you have probably 8 cars in the first couple of hours and then there are a couple of later pick-ups.  The way we do this car line process in the building we’re in currently is we allow a ten minute window for the 8:30 morning arrival we start at 25 after and in about 7 or 8 minutes we’ve unloaded all of those 30, 40 cars about 50 children, escort them into the building and then we wait about 2 more minutes before we close the doors at 8:35.  The difference at the Sand Shore location in this type of arrival and dismissal process is that the sidewalk is longer.  Right now we’re stopping almost at the main, the front door within a few cars of the front door and at Sand Shore we’ll have to walk up the walk or the handicapped ramp we’re actually going to use both of those and we’re going to allow extra time 5 minutes or more extra to make this process work as well as it has in the past.  Each September we train, we have a parent orientation night and one of the things we train them on is we take a picture of the property and we show them exactly what we expect them to do in the car line.  We also train our new staff on this every year and of course we’ll train our entire staff on it if we’re moving to this new building.  The cars pull up about 3 spaces past the front entrance, 3 cars are . . . children are unloaded from 3 cars at a time, walked up to the front door where their teachers are waiting for them.   When we were looking at this space we actually went out and watched the cars lining up, saw how much space we used and measured that space out and then went over to this property and measured that space out again to be sure that even on our worst day where we have 10 cars backed up in our line that we could fit those 10 cars in the loop in the parking lot.  Two or three staff are taking children out of the cars, escorting them in and then for safety reasons we have one person who is just monitoring the traffic, helping the cars pull up, directing staff that kind of thing guiding the traffic flow and looking for problems.  We have two rules in our car line one is that the children in the cars never move at the same time, and the other one is that the cars always remain in the same position in line.  So if you arrive at our building when we’re doing the car line it’s not a choice you have to become part of the car line you can’t decide to walk in and get your children.  Parents are aware of that from the start and their aware that it’s for safety reasons that we don’t want toddlers that drivers can’t see crossing between cars.  At the end of the day the children are called in the order that their cars are in line, they’re walked out to the car in the same way, the cars pull up near the exit, they stop there they fasten or check their seat belts and the children do their own and then they pull out of the driveway in the same way that they came in.  Typically we have several deliveries throughout the year we have pizza lunch on every Thursday and the pizza gets delivered 11:15 in the morning before the 11:30 arrival.  I order supplies several times a year, about 10 times in total.  The stationary supplies come usually between 10:00 and 11:00 a.m. about 4 times a year, the UPS truck comes 3 to 6 times a year on no routine schedule but typically he’s either very early in the morning or very late in the afternoon so his schedule hasn’t seemed to interfere with our car line and none of the other schedules do, we schedule them purposely.  Some questions were brought up about the second floor use.  There’s no changes to the layout on the second floor and the uses are essentially the same, administrative and storage.  The rooms on the previous site plan the rooms that were listed as the filing and counting rooms will be our teacher’s areas, their resource storage areas for curriculum materials and a break room.  The office and reception areas will continue to be office and reception areas, and what was called the demonstration room will be a small conference room.  So all administrative storage type uses with a break room.   Typically . . . the other issue that was brought up had to do with trash, we remove our trash to the dumpster every day and Waste Management takes it out on Friday mornings.  There’s no trash bin on the site now it was indicated in the back corner of the lot closest to the building and the well is there.  We didn’t want to put the trash bin there because of the exit door, the emergency exit door coming off of the loading dock there as well the well is there.  But we didn’t want to impede the exit of children during emergencies or during our monthly exit drills.  
MR. SAUTER:

In one of the reports there is a question raised regarding the signage and the setback.  Can you just confirm that the sign will be setback the necessary 10 feet so that no variance is being requested?

MS. VLOSSAK:

That’s no problem at all happy to do it.  

MR. SAUTER:

Okay and the location of a playground I’m presuming that’s dictated because there is no rear yard behind this existing building?

MS. VLOSSAK:

No there’s very small space in the back of the building and in the front of the building there’s some space off to the side where the septic system is going to be.  There really is no space of adequate size to put a play area other than somewhere in the front of the building.  

MR. SAUTER:

And you testified before that the 2,000 square feet is just about the minimum requirement based upon enrollment right?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Right.

MR. SAUTER:

And the layout of that is setback pretty much as far as it can go it’s pushed right up to the walkway area and the building.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Very close to the walkway it almost comes right off the corner of the wing of the building that protrudes out into the yard, it comes off that corner very closely.  
MR. SAUTER:

Okay I’m not professing that Kristina is testifying as a planner or an architect but she’s the best I’ve got.  Can you give us a rough estimate with respect to how far setback the, I’ll call it the front of the playground area is from the roadway?  It’s a loaded question I . . . .

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yeah it’s a loaded question.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I can help you if you’d like.

MR. SAUTER:

I think we had estimated at about 60 feet.

MS. VLOSSAK:

I think we did but I don’t . . .

MR. SAUTER:

I would appreciate the help he has.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yeah.

MR. MCGROARTY:
It’s actually 52 feet as I measure it to the lot line and to the street itself about 75.

MR. SAUTER:

And just if you could just briefly describe again the first floor what’s going on in the first floor of the building.

MS. VLOSSAK:

As you enter where the new main entry of the first floor is there will be a foyer right there, there are two classrooms to the left, and two classrooms off to the right.  There are also 5 bathrooms, the classrooms are sized according to Department of Children and Family requirements where our maximum classroom size is 20 for the older children and 12 for the younger children.  There is one smaller classroom for older children because that’s as big as we could make the space so we have two classrooms which each hold 12 children, two classrooms which each hold 20 children.  The bathroom requirement for that number is 5 and so there are 5 toilets, 5 sinks in the bathroom the only other thing downstairs really is the foyer and just corridors to get to the two areas of the building.

MR. WEISS:

Could you hold up for a second.  Does anybody on the Planning Board, we’ve heard a lot of testimony, does anybody have any questions for Kristina?

MR. BEDELL:

I have some.
MR. WEISS:

Okay . . .

MR. SAUTER:

We’re pretty much towards the very end.

MR. WEISS:

Okay let’s let Kristina finish.

MS. VLOSSAK:

That’s it.

MR. WEISS:

Okay that’s a good time then Chuck for you to come back to your thought.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Just a few questions.  On the floor plan itself then will there be any cooking facility?

MS. VLOSSAK:

No.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No kitchens.

MS. VLOSSAK:

The teacher break room will have a refrigerator in it we’re required to have that, we use microwave there is no cooking on the premises though.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So you’re not preparing meals for the children.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Not at all.  They bring their own from home every day.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
But there is a microwave to heat lunches and stuff correct?

MS. VLOSSAK:

For our toddlers but that’s it after that they just bring their own cold lunch.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So if I may let me just go back to a couple of things.  So the plans then can be . . . subsequently can be modified to show that the sign the freestanding sign will be setback 10 feet?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
The sign will be revised okay.  I just have a few Mr. Chairman.

MR. WEISS:

Sure go ahead.

MR. MGROARTY:
The drop off will be (inaudible) pick-up, but the drop off I wasn’t clear you said I think 8:30 and there was 35 to 40 cars?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Does that mean in the time prior to and up . . .
MS. VLOSSAK:

In those 10 minutes between 8:25 and 8:35 we pass 30 to 40 cars through our car line and we do that usually in less than 10 minutes now.  

MR. MCGROARTY:
And you’re allowing . . . here you’ll allow some extra time because the length.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Absolutely because of the length of the sidewalk.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay I’m not a traffic expert so these are not trick questions I’m just trying to understand.  Where you are now your situated in that large parking lot up at Paragon Village and so cars can be in the parking lot.  Now you said you . . .

MS. VLOSSAK:

Cars do the same routine; they don’t pull in to the parking lot now.  When we unload their children if they will pull up, if they need to buckle up or unbuckle . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
No I’m sorry let me . . . I phrased that poorly.  They don’t necessarily park but they’re off the highway or the street rather.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Here the concern would be you know 35, 40 cars your representing to the Board and you’re confident that you can accommodate 35 to 40 cars even with the extra time that you’re going to allow now to have children come out?

MS. VLOSSAK:

We typically don’t have more than 10 cars in line at a time.  We have 3 to 4 people out there unloading cars the whole time so there is difference to be incorporated into the getting them up the sidewalk to the next staff person.  And we expect that five minutes will be enough for that but if it’s not then we’ll just adjust either our timing or our staffing to make it work.  At that 8:30 arrival all of the staff are in the building except our 2 late day staff.  So there’s 10 people in the building and we can pull 6 of them if we need to do that.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I guess the concern is will traffic back up onto Sand Shore Road.

MS. VLOSSAK:

I don’t believe it will based on our experience.  I can’t tell you but I can tell you that when we have a back-up in line its 10 cars it’s not 20 or 30 cars they don’t all come at 8:25.  Some of them it’s better to come at 8:35 and then get down the road to their schools for 9:00.  So they come according to their need and we move them as quickly out of the lot as they come in.  There is a little bit of an area on the road there between Gateway Cable and our driveway where it’s . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
Gateway Cable I’m sorry is where now?

MS. VLOSSAK:

It’s our neighbor as your looking at the plans the neighbor to the right, to the west.  

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MS. VLOSSAK:

And there is a lane there if it . . .

MR. MCGROARTY:
The shoulder?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The shoulder.

MS. VLOSSAK:

The shoulder.

MR. VAN NESS:

Chuck, Gene if I may?

MR. WEISS:

Sure Scott.

MR. VAN NESS:

I’ve actually observed your Deer Path over the years, for many years and they do have a well oiled machine.  I observed them in Flanders when they were in Flanders School they rarely if ever had a problem backing up into the street.  Where they are in Paragon Village the parents don’t park they pull up, they all do the pull up/drop-off and drive away and they even rarely back up the driveway which is a much shorter distance between the doors that exist there and in this property.  And if on the off chance that they do spill out into the road there’s an existing shoulder for a number of feet along the eastbound side of Sand Shore Road that would accommodate any spill over traffic without a problem.  
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
As long as they’re not coming from the other direction.

MR. VAN NESS:

Well even if they were coming from the other direction hopefully there’s a shoulder there as well.

MR. WEISS:

Let’s let Chuck finish and we’ll come back I see there’s some other questions.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Well that’s very helpful obviously coming . . . since Scott has mentioned that.  And by the way just for the record Mr. Sauter provided us a copy of the license so if we had a question of whether this a permitted use and you (inaudible) a child care center its licensed, it is permitted in all non-residential zones under the Land Use Law.  Mr. Buzak should we probably, maybe mark this?

MR. BUZAK:

Yes why don’t we mark it, did we mark anything?

MR. WEISS:

No we didn’t.

MR. BUZAK:

All right so we’ll mark this A-1.

MR. MCGROARTY:
A-1 Catherine I’ll give that to you.

MR. WEISS:

A-1 is a copy of the State license.

MR. MCGROARTY:
A-1 tonight’s date which is 4/21/11.  The date of expiration on this is October 11, 2012 and you get it renewed annually is that how it works?

MS. VLOSSAK:

No every three years.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I just had a couple more questions.  Just to clarify then, your play area you have no other room on the site and we all know this and see the site here and I’m sure a lot of us know the site, there’s virtually no backyard so you have to put the play area somewhere so you’re putting it in the front yard.  So the inference there when you presented this information is that it’s a C-1 type variance because of the constraints of the lot I take it.  Mr. Sauter probably confirmed that that’s the thinking here that it’s a hardship variance you have no other place to put it.

MR. SAUTER:

Correct.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Question though on the location of the playground, you’ve indicated that two trees will be removed.  Is that necessary?

MS. VLOSSAK:

The Crab Apple Tree has rot at the base and so it’s in poor health it’s going to need to go.  Also licensing won’t allow us to have a Crab Apple tree that the children could possibly get the berries.  It’s on their list, it’s from Poison Information Education it’s on their list of poisoness . . .
MR. MCGROARTY:
That’s the Crab Apple. 

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
What about the other one?

MS. VLOSSAK:

The Maple is perfectly fine to stay, there’s some question about whether or not that space is going to be used by a new septic system and so if it needs to go for the septic then it would go but otherwise we love that tree, we’d love to have it stay.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay so unless the septic, unless the Health Department which I believe you have their report, you’re going to have to . . .
MS. VLOSSAK:

Right.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And the trash collection again it will be a new enclosed dumpster in the back.  Will it be fully enclosed?

MS. VLOSSAK:

It will be gated so he opens the gate and he backs up to the dumpster.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And we’ve asked the detail be placed on the plans and you agree that that will be done?

MR. SAUTER:

We will do that.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And again as I indicated in the report that’s an accessory structure it encroaches into the setbacks, your testimony is that you have no other place to put it or the preferred location was on the opposite side of the parking lot that’s where the well is and it might interfere with emergency access of the building.  So this is the best location that you’ve determined it can go correct?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yes.

MR. MCGROARTY:
So again another (inaudible) that the existing improvements on the site and lack of alternative options it’s a C-1 variance here as well I take it, in reading between the lines what you were saying before.  Stop me if I’m wrong.

MS. VLOSSAK:

No you’re right we . . . short of the front yard we couldn’t find a place to put it.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Okay.

MS. VLOSSAK:

That would be within the setback.

MR. MCGROARTY:
That’s all I have Mr. Chairman thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Okay Jim I think you had a question?

MR. STASZAK:

No I was just going to agree with what Scott said as a participant in your drop off and pick-up.  It goes very quickly within five minutes being the last car in line sometimes it took about 5 minutes to get all 30 cars through.
MR. WEISS:

Steve?

MR. BEDELL:

I guess on the same line you know I guess I don’t have experience with you’re the pick-up/drop off but I know if my daughter you know they have a large parking lot but there could easily be 25 cars in line easily.  You know parents will try to get there first on line so they don’t have to wait the 10 minutes to get their kids.  So I guess my question is is how many cars can you fit in a line before they start to spill out to Sand Shore?  Understanding there is a larger shoulder but if someone is coming westbound they’re going to be across so that’s a question I have.

MS. VLOSSAK:

What I did to try to figure this out for myself was I arrived during an 8:30 car line process that’s our heaviest one in the morning and I watched the process.  Usually I’m the safety monitor I watch the process, I let the cars back-up and I counted off I watch the spaces where the cars were driving and I counted that off we were back 10 cars, we were back to just coming around a corner onto the main road through Paragon Village’s development.  And then I came over here and I walked that off and on our worse backup we were still, just barely, but we were still fully in the lot.  So I can’t tell you with any more accuracy than that but that’s what we did to kind of test whether this would work for us.

MR. BEDELL:

That was a concern I have just having seen others and you know . . .

MS. VLOSSAK:

What I can tell you that we do that does help us quite a bit is our Stepping Stones program is our youngest program, those children are between 6 months and 3 years 3 months when they start with us in September.  We work on a school year so that’s their class.  Those children arrive at 9:00 they tend to be the slowest to move through the line and there are only 10 to 12 children in that line.  So the people in that 8:30 line are pretty motivated their kids get out of the car easily, they’ve been in the school for a year already it just is a very routine thing.  When we back-up we just call on more people to help us either our Business Administrator comes out and helps us, anyone who is on board that’s what they do in the morning just to keep it flowing.

MR. BEDELL:

Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Steve it looks like coming in off of Sand Shore to around the loop you probably can get 13, 14 cars in there.

MR. BEDELL:

Yeah?  Okay.  All right and again I don’t know the number of students and everything else but I just know I’ve taken my daughter a couple of time in the morning you know or even picked her up after school you know her pre-school it can wrap around easily 20 cars.  So that’s why I just have an experience there.  Also I just looked at an aerial you know I see all of the parking spots but I don’t see any lines off of my aerial view but I’m assuming the spaces are lined or they will be lined?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
They’re not lined yet.

MR. BEDELL:

Okay.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s a question I have in my report too.

MR. BEDELL:

And then also the other question I had too is maybe just food for thought is I guess on the I guess you know looking at I guess this schematic here the parking lots I guess that face the play area if a parent parks on the other spots and walks with their kid they have to walk through two rows of traffic.  So it might be easier if maybe some of these spots are for like a parent pick-up or reserved for a parent pick-up?  
MS. VLOSSAK:

There’s no one allowed to walk in during our car line.  You can’t pick your children up when we’re doing that so those spaces are available for whenever anyone wants to walk in or if they want to park.  If there child is having trouble and they want to pull up and pull off into an empty space you know they can do that.

MR. BEDELL:

Okay.  So therefore there’s no child walking across two lines of traffic.

MS. VLOSSAK:

No absolutely not.

MR. BEDELL:

Okay all right.

MR. WEISS:

Go ahead Nelson.

MR. RUSSELL:

Yeah you’re talking about drop off times.  I’m not going to use my daughter because she’s 40 but as a grandfather I know it takes more time to buckle them in than it does to unbuckle and unload.  How about the pick-up times as they’re leaving?  I mean it’s a longer process is it not?

MS. VLOSSAK:

No it’s not but the reason is its fewer children in each process.  About half of our children attend the half day program and dismiss at 11:30 and the remaining children dismiss either at 2:30 or use the extended hours and walk in.  

MR. BEDELL:

So the bulk come in in the morning.

MS. VLOSSAK:

The bulk come between 8:30 and 9:00 those two dismissals at 9:00 one being about 10 to 12 children and the earlier one being 40 to 50 children and then a few walk-ins.  But at the end of the day the dismissal is broken in half and so we are able to accommodate that.  We don’t buckle the children in we place them in the car, they sit in their seats and then their parents pull up they’ll pull up almost to the exit and then buckle their children there and then pull out.  

MR. RUSSELL:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Do we have any other questions for Kristina?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Should I go over my report now?

MR. WEISS:

Is Kristina going to . . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I think so some of them right?  Do you have anybody else?  Is the architect going to present or . . .

MR. SAUTER:

If there are questions with respect to the interior renovations we can have the architect, the architect is available.

MR. WEISS:

Before we go into the engineer let’s see if anybody from the public has any questions for the testimony that’s been delivered so far just to make sure we don’t get too far ahead of ourselves.  Is there anybody from the public who has a question?  Seeing none let’s move over to Gene’s report.  I actually have one quick question for Kristina.  Of your students that you currently have I think you said 65 or 64?

MS. VLOSSAK:

We’re allowed 65 in the building at a time we currently have 57 this year.

MR. WEISS:

How many of those children are from Mt. Olive?

MS. VLOSSAK:

I would say, oh I can’t say . . . we draw predominantly from Mt. Olive and Hackettstown.  We have families from Long Valley that’s always our third most prominent representation and then a handful of people who travel up to 40 and 50 minutes to where we are Califon, Sparta, Belvidere.  I can’t give you an accurate number this year I usually do know exactly what that is it’s typically between Hackettstown the development on the hill there in Hackettstown and Mt. Olive you know three quarters of our population but I can’t give you an accurate number this year I can look it up.
MR. WEISS:

Okay just curious.

MR. VAN NESS:

The majority are Mt. Olive residents?

MS. VLOSSAK:

I would say probably half yeah that you know the people who are in that development next to us Woodfield, is that Mt. Olive or Hackettstown I’m not sure because of the . . . but we get a lot of people from there.  So on my register they’re showing up as a Hackettstown address and that’s where my confusion is coming from.  Between the two it’s three quarters of our population.

MR. WEISS:

Okay thanks for that.  Okay Gene let’s go over your report.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Sure my report is dated April 5th.  Just some clean up items, Item number 2 on page 2 of my report regarding just for the record several waivers of the check  list items.  One was for the utility company will serve letters, one was for plans and reports relative to environmental impact report, drainage calcs., especially for those two waivers you know for this application it’s an existing site I see no problems with that.  A third waiver was a land surveyor certification of boundary or lot lines.  There are metes and bounds shown on the drawing there’s no survey submitted because I don’t think they had an existing survey available to them.  I think at the minimum if they could just reference where the metes and bounds came from if it came from a deed or something there should be some reference in the drawing regarding that and I think that would take care of that item.  The forth waiver listed under item two was plan information waiver from providing scaled elevations of the building since it’s an existing building.  The only concern I have about the plan itself is my item number 3b they show the handicapped ramp it’s a schematic it shows a ramp up area of 18 feet, a landing area and then a ramp up area.  Looking at the elevations, the (inaudible) in the driveway and the entrance I question if it could be built per the ADA requirements.  However you know it’s a schematic as shown he still has to go to the Building Department and he has to submit a design at the Building Department so we can let it go but I just wanted to go on the record that based on the information shown on this drawing I question whether or not it can meet the ADA requirements.  
MR. BEDELL:

They don’t have a choice on that do they?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
They don’t that’s why I said it’s really subject to review at the Construction Code Official’s office.

MR. RUSSELL:

A drop of 1 inch per linear foot that’s the standard?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Based on what I see here okay that’s all I can . . . so they can address in more detail when they go for the building permits.  Item 4 and item 5 the applicant has addressed in earlier testimony.  Item 6 is regarding the same item Chuck brought up regarding two trees so that’s been addressed they’ll try and save the Maple if they can.  
MR. MCGROARTY:
I was going to ask Gene on you’re, because you had brought up the comment about the play area the details, should that be shown on the plans?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Well you mentioned what you’re going to have on the site. Do we want to put it on the plan?

MR. MCGROARTY:
Is it . . . could you just tell us again it’s not impervious coverage it’s sand and grass?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
It’s a grassed area basically right?

MS. VLOSSAK:

It’s basically the grassy area that exists.  There’s two raised beds one will have mulch in it and it’s for a climbing tower and then the other one has an ark a play ark and it’s in a sand bed.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So one will have mulch and the other area will have sand.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Play ark?  I don’t . . . .

MS. VLOSSAK:

It’s a boat. 

MR. MCGROARTY:
By the way is it the boat that’s in the parking lot?

MS. VLOSSAK:

No.  It’s the boat that’s in our current playground where we are now.  

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Whose boat is in the parking lot?

MS. VLOSSAK:

The neighbor Gateway Cable he owns that boat.  

MR. MCGROARTY:
It’s like the Queen Mary.

MS. VLOSSAK:

The sand ark which is designed for the younger children the 2-1/2 to 3 year olds is . . . both of those structures were designed for us by somebody who just designs in playground landscaping public playgrounds.  So he has designed those to us they were extremely expensive to put the playground in at Paragon Village it was $37,000 I think and so we want to move those things to the new location that climbing tower and that ark.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
On that item number 5 could you show a detailed drawing of the proposed fence and gate?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Yes.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Item number 7 regarding lighting you have some lighting there now do you feel that’s sufficient even for the winter months?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Because the people are really, they’re gone by 4:30 for the most part.  There are those two or three families, there’s on the corner of the building next to the loading dock there’s a light on the building there that illuminates that part of the parking lot.  The bottom half is illuminated by another light on that same side.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
So people that come in late the after hours the 6:00, 6:30 it’s night time they’ll just park in a parking space right?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Exactly they just park in a visitors space where there is light.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Fine.  And it’s a minor item, item number 8 we received two different plans from your architect but there was no revision we just put a revision you’re going to have a third drawing just have a revision date for the revised drawing.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Sure.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That’s all I have.

MR. WEISS:

Just one point I know Gene you just said 6:30 but I think Kristina said 6:00.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Was it 6:00 I thought it was 6:30.

MS. VLOSSAK:

It’s 6:00 p.m.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay.

MR. WEISS:

6:00 is not as late.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
2:30 to 6:00 for extended hours.

MS. VLOSSAK:

2:30 to 6:00 for extended right.

MR. WEISS:

Anybody else?  Joe.

MR. MCGROARTY:
Mr. Chairman I just wanted to mention that, and I don’t know if the Board has seen it but the Health Department did a memo dated April 15 and I believe the applicant has it and they call attention to some problems.
MR. FLEISCHNER:
That was going to be my question.  What are you proposing with the sewage disposal system since the Health Department says it’s not sufficient?

MS. VLOSSAK:

We’re planning to put a new septic system in we’ve hired a septic engineer already and he’s been to the site.  So I had spoken to, I would say his name wrong the Health Official?

MR. FLEISCHNER:
Frank Wilpert.

MS. VLOSSAK:

And he had said you know he had mentioned, that’s not who I’m thinking . . . Bob Stahlhut?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Yeah.

MS. VLOSSAK:

We had spoken to him early on last November, December and he had said that this would be a requirement right from the start.  So we planned for it.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

So we would have a condition that the septic system would meet the standards as . . .

MR. BUZAK:

Yes.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Approved by the Health Department.

MR. WEISS:

And you don’t have a problem with that?

MS. VLOSSAK:

Not at all.

MR. MCGROARTY:
And on that note if I may Mr. Chairman?

MR. WEISS:

Sure Chuck.

MR. MCGROARTY:
It’s your testimony too was if at all possible that you’ll save the Maple unless your septic beds have to go there.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Right.

MR. WEISS:

Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

Is this a lock entry building, a secure entry building?  Will it be when you’re in here?

MS. VLOSSAK:

It will have a buzzer and you’ll have to be buzzed in.  So the doors are locked when the children are in the building you can get out from the inside but you can’t get in from outside.  And we have monitors in various places throughout the building where we can release the door.

MR. VAN NESS:

Thank you.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
The other comment we received from the other agency was the Fire Marshall regarding showing fire lanes.  Did you consult the Fire Marshall yet or no.

MR. SAUTER:

I don’t think we saw that report.

MS. VLOSSAK:

I’m not aware of that.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
Okay.   What’s the date of the report?
MR. BEDELL:

April 5th.  

MR. VAN NESS:

Also if you instruct your parents that if there’s any waiting on Sand Shore Road going westbound towards Route 46 that they would be shooed away by law enforcement.  There will be no waiting in the middle of the road.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Okay.

MR. VAN NESS:

All right so that might help them line up correctly as well.  Most of your parents are coming from the other direction anyway but they should know that they won’t be permitted to wait in the middle of the road should for a space to open.  I realize it moves quickly and it’s probably going to be a rare thing but they should be aware of that issue anyway.

MS. VLOSSAK:

We’ll be happy to do that we give them very specific direction now and so we’ll just give them specific direction in the future too.  

MR. WEISS:

Gene should we talk about the fire lane?  Because the report that we have from the Fire Marshall says that he would like to see where fire lanes would be and the current plan does not show any nor do I see any possibility of putting them.
MR. BUCZYNSKI:
I agree that’s what I was just saying to Chuck I don’t know where they would put the fire lanes but I think that’s something they have to concur with the Fire Marshall.

MR. MCGROARTY:
I mean one thing is, and I absolutely the Fire . . . they’re going to have to anyway and they certainly should as a condition, there is that drop off of space which is blocked off and then there’s that other space blocked off in the I guess whatever corner that is southeast corner or whatever it is, and I’m sure the Fire Marshall is going to want to at least have those because then it provides unobstructed access to the building.  I know from past experience they’ve asked for that.  But yeah I mean a fire lane there’s no place to put it.  

MR. VAN NESS:

If I may?

MR. WEISS:

Sure Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

I think that the driveway they use for their . . . the way they have their driveway set up for their pick-up/drop off is probably a significant approach to a fire lane.  As basically by restricting no parking in those areas so that in and of itself would be the fire lane to allow fire vehicles or emergency vehicles complete access to that property.  Just you might need access from maybe through one parking space to . . . because there is one where the handicapped is the cross-haired spot.  That could be you know . . .

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
That and the one in the back.

MR. VAN NESS:

Yeah that’s a no parking so that would probably be more than appropriate.

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
But that’s up to the Fire Marshall.

MR. VAN NESS:

Right but just from dealing with Fred myself frequently as well I think that he’d be satisfied with that.

MR. WEISS:

So Ken you’ll have to make sure that you work that out with the Fire Marshall.

MR. SAUTER:

Yes thank you.

MR. WEISS:

Do we have any other reports?  I don’t see any.  Anybody else have any questions based on the testimony that was given by the applicant based on the questions by the engineer does anybody from the public have any questions?  Okay seeing none we’ll go back to you.

MR. SAUTER:

Okay Frank Creegan is the architect I wasn’t planning to give any lengthy testimony from him unless there were questions with respect to the interior renovations we’ve already addressed the handicapped access ramp.

MR. WEISS:

I don’t have any questions.  Does anybody on the Planning Board?  Chuck or Gene?

MR. BUCZYNSKI:
No.

MR. MCGROARTY:
No.

MR. WEISS:

Ed do you have any questions?

MR. BUZAK:

No.

MR. WEISS:

I don’t think it will be necessary.

MR. SAUTER:

Thank you.  I have no further witnesses.

MR. WEISS:

Does anybody on the Planning Board have any questions or concerns or comments, suggestions?

MR. RUSSELL:

Comment is that the applicant seemed exceptionally prepared.

MR. WEISS:

I tend to agree for a non-professional she did very well.
MR. SAUTER:

She’s a teacher she did her homework.

MR. WEISS:

Scott?

MR. VAN NESS:

I think that my opinion of course is that this . . . I’m familiar with this property that I think it’s an excellent use for that at that location.  It’s off the highway yet close enough for ease access, easy access for emergency vehicles or (inaudible) should be necessary and it’s been vacant for a long time as well.  And you know Deer Path has always been a good resident in Mt. Olive and it’s nice to see that they decided to stay in the area.  

MR. WEISS:

Thank you Scott.  Is there anybody from the public that has any comments about anything that we heard this evening?  Okay seeing none I’ll close it to the public and I’ll entertain a motion from the Planning Board.

MR. FLEISCHNER:
I move that we approve the applicant with the appropriate verbage which our esteemed attorney will dictate to us.

MR. MANIA:

Second.

MR. WEISS:

Okay John seconded it and Ed let me turn to you and if we were to approve such a motion that motion would include certain conditions.

MR. BUZAK:

Yes Mr. Chairman what I have are the following in addition to the granting of the variances as set forth in the planner’s report.  The conditions will include a freestanding sign to be moved to a conforming location, details shown on the plans for the two play areas with raised beds will be lining the climbing tower and the play ark, detail of the fence with the gate that’s a play area.  The applicant will have to comply with all requirements of the Health Department and the Fire Marshall, the new septic system which is really part of the Health Department will meet the current standards.  The applicant will remove the Crab Apple tree but it will attempt to save the Maple tree provided that it does not have to be removed, or will save the tree provided it does not have to be removed for the installation of the septic beds.  That’s what I had Mr. Chairman.

MR. MCGROARTY:
One other thing Mr. Buzak I’m sorry a detail for the trash enclosure.

MR. BUZAK:

Ah thank you.

MR. STASZAK:

Wasn’t there a question about the sign?

MR. MCGROARTY:
The sign Mr. Buzak mentioned that the . . . .

MR. BUZAK:

The sign will be moved back to a conforming location.
MR. WEISS:

And those conditions are fine?  And I guess just before we take a roll call or have any last minute comments I just want to just make a quick note to the Planning Board I heard certain testimony about Planning Board members using the services of Montesorri School?  I don’t want to assume that’s the case but if you have been if not members if your children have attended the Montessori School perhaps use your best judgment when you vote.

MR. BUZAK:

I agree Mr. Chairman I didn’t hear anything but I think that if any member of the Board’s children attend the school they would be wise to recuse themselves from the vote.

MR. WEISS:

With that being said Catherine?

MRS. NATAFALUSY:
John Cavanaugh

- yes




Joe Fleischner


- yes




Rene Gadelha


- yes




John Mania


- yes




Nelson Russell


- yes




Jim Staszak


- abs.




Scott Van Ness


- yes




Steve Bedell


- yes




Howie Weiss


- yes

MR. WEISS:

Thank you Jim.  

MR. SAUTER:

I guess my only comment is I’ll sort of save the breath but Mr. Selvaggi’s comments were the same comments that we were going to have with respect to resolutions and approvals and moving forward.  So I think we heard what you said before.

MR. WEISS:

I would say you’re ready tomorrow but I’d be lying to you.  

MR. SAUTER:

Moving as quickly as we can.

MR. MCGROARTY:
But you’ll get us revised plans?

MR. SAUTER:

Yes we’ll take care of that.  Thank you very much.

MS. VLOSSAK:

Thank you.

MR. WEISS:

We have no other further business on the agenda this evening.  Motion to adjourn?

MR. STASZAK:

I make a motion we adjourn.

MR. MANIA:

So moved.

MR. WEISS:

Anybody object to that?  Seeing no objections all those in favor?

EVERYONE:

Aye.

(MEETING ADJOURNED AT 9:50 P.M.)








Transcribed by:








Lauren Perkins, Secretary








Planning Department

